

The Physician's Role in Selecting a Factor Replacement Therapy

The principle of evidence-based medicine promotes the judicious and conscientious use of the current best evidence when making healthcare decisions for individual patients. While this strategy, popularized in the early 1990s, is frequently useful, it is clearly of limited benefit in the context of emerging infectious diseases. By the time concrete evidence of an emerging infectious agent is available, it is often too late to prevent infection in the most susceptible populations.

Today we have an opportunity for proactive decision-making. We cannot make decisions regarding the safety of our blood supply solely using an evidenced-based approach, but we can take the lessons of the past and, using our current knowledge of disease-causing agents, extrapolate potential risks in order to better formulate effective healthcare policies.

Learning from the Past

In the years immediately preceding the HIV epidemic, medical and scientific communities, government agencies, and the blood therapies industry operated in an essentially reactive mode with respect to infectious diseases. At this time, circa 1980, the risk of patients with hemophilia becoming infected with human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and hepatitis C virus (HCV) was perceived as theoretical; this lack of forethought led to a delay

Formatted: Line spacing: At least 24 pt

Deleted: Title TX¶

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Deleted: In the years immediately preceding the HIV epidemic, circa 1980, the medical and scientific communities, government agencies, and the blood therapies industry were operating in an essentially reactive mode with respect to infectious diseases. At this time, the risk of HIV and hepatitis C infection (HCV) was perceived as theoretical; this led to a delay in implementing measures that would have protected haemophilia patients from exposure to these infectious agents.¶

In defense of these stakeholders, there was little or no reliable evidence of HIV or HCV transmission from with plasma-based therapies. As the 1980s proceeded, however, the evidence that these diseases were, in fact, transmitted through blood products began to increase and come to the attention of all involved with the haemophilia community.¶

¶ Limitations of Evidence-Based Medicine¶

Deleted: Today, compared with what was known in 1980, there is an opportunity for proactive decision-making. In that evidence-based medicine relies largely on hindsight

Deleted: , it has a role to play in

Deleted: ing

Deleted: current

Deleted: y; it cannot unfortunately, predict future threats to the safety of the blood supply

Deleted: ¶

in implementing measures that would have protected patients with hemophilia from exposure to these infectious agents.

In defense of these stakeholders, there was little or no reliable evidence of HIV or HCV transmission via plasma-based therapies.

As the 1980s proceeded, however, the evidence that these diseases were, in fact, transmitted through blood products began to increase and come to the attention of all involved with the hemophilia community.

While the transmission pathways and disease processes for HIV and HCV are now well understood, uncertainty remains about variant Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease (vCJD) and other emerging pathogens.

The clear message is that it is our obligation as healthcare providers to help make proactive decisions for our patients, and that often these must be made in an environment of scientific uncertainty. Threats from infectious agents that were once deemed theoretical can, and often do, ultimately become real, with serious implications for morbidity and mortality.

Safety Considerations: Pathogen Risks and Inactivation Efforts

The safety of hemophilia therapies can largely be attributed to the use of effective screening and testing technologies available for HIV, HBV, or HCV. For nearly 20 years, since 1987, there has been no transmission of HIV, HBV, or HCV from any plasma-derived or recombinant therapy in the United States. (NHF 2003) The real challenge, however, is presented by the likely emergence of a

Deleted: for HIV and HCV

Deleted: within the scientific world is

Deleted: still common with regard to

Deleted: CJD

Deleted: still have to

Deleted: :

Deleted: Threats

Deleted: a

Deleted: risk

Deleted: from a host of infectious agents

Deleted: Plasma-Based Therapy

Deleted: s

Deleted: P

Deleted: I

Deleted: E

new, blood-borne infectious agent.

For the purposes of discussing inactivation measures, infectious agents, can be classified in three categories:

- Lipid-enveloped viruses, eg, hepatitis B virus (HBV), HCV, and HIV
- Non-lipid enveloped viruses, eg, parvovirus B19 (PVB19) and hepatitis A virus (HAV)
- Disease-causing prions, eg, CJD, and vCJD

Lipid-Enveloped Viruses

Lipid-enveloped viruses have a protective fatty membrane, or envelope; if this membrane is destroyed the enclosed virus is also destroyed. There is very good evidence that the lipid-

enveloped viruses are effectively inactivated with current technologies. (Chandra 2002) All licensed processors of plasma therapies and recombinant therapies made with human and animal protein-additives use validated methods to both detect and eliminate HBV, HCV, HIV, and the other lipid-enveloped viruses for which screening and inactivation methods have been

developed. (CDC 2002) West Nile virus is another lipid-enveloped virus for which effective screening methods exist; in the period January-September 20, 2005, 268 cases of viremic blood donors were reported in the US to the US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (CDC 2005)

Non-Lipid-Enveloped Viruses

- Deleted: When
- Deleted: considering
- Deleted: efforts
- Deleted: pathogens
- Deleted: grouped
- Deleted: to
- Deleted: E
- Deleted: v
- Deleted: C
- Deleted: L
- Deleted: E
- Deleted: v
- Deleted: PV
- Deleted: ,
- Deleted: P
- Deleted: s
- Deleted: ,
- Deleted: vCJD
- Formatted: Font: Italic

- Deleted:
- Deleted: human and animal protein-added

- Deleted: all

- Deleted: that are available for testing
- Deleted:
- Deleted: also has
- Deleted: , and while not universally effective
- Deleted: , only seven
- Deleted: have been identified in 2005 throughout the entire

- Formatted: Font: Italic

As the term would indicate, non-lipid-enveloped viruses lack a protective enclosure. Its lack of an envelope makes it difficult to target these viruses. In addition, the physical and chemical conditions created by vapor/heat, solvent/detergent, and gamma irradiation technologies adequate for inactivation may denature the factor VIII protein..(Chandra 2002, Knight 2004, Abe 2000, Farrugia 2004, Hoots 2001, Fischer 2001)

Deleted: Inactivation of non-lipid-envelope viruses and prions with

Deleted: current technologies of

Deleted: or

Deleted: is far less effective. Inactivation

Deleted: of these viruses and prions can be achieved with current methods, but only under physical and chemical conditions that would likely

Deleted:

Deleted: Antibodies in Patients Treated with Factor VIII Concentrates

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

Parvovirus B19

Human parvovirus B19 (PVB19) is a widespread non-lipid-enveloped virus that causes the common childhood illness called fifth disease. Community-acquired exposure and seroconversion to this virus is common and occurs quite early in the lives of most people. Parvovirus B19 shares the hallmark of other non-lipid-enveloped viruses: resistance to inactivation technologies. Parvovirus is of particular concern to the hemophilia community because of reports that parvovirus has been found in factor concentrates. A prospective study published in 1997 by Santagostino et al indicated that very high temperatures applied to lyophilized factor concentrates did not prevent the transmission of PVB19 to patients with hemophilia. (Santagostino 1997)

Deleted: ,

Deleted: ,

Deleted:

Deleted: T

Deleted: antibodies to parvovirus (

Deleted:)

Deleted: among cohorts of

Deleted: young

Deleted: boys

Deleted: haemophilia

Deleted: was compared

Soucie et al evaluated the risk of parvovirus B19 transmission as a result of treatment with recombinant antihemophilic factor. To compare the seroprevalence of PVB19, antibodies in two- to seven-year-old males with hemophilia, 798 subjects were grouped by

their exposure to types of factor VIII or IX concentrates: those who had received only plasma-derived therapies, only recombinant therapies, both recombinant and plasma-derived therapies, or no antihemophilic factor at all (control group). The study found that the prevalence of seropositivity was higher in both the plasma-derived only and recombinant and plasma-derived therapies groups than in the control and recombinant only groups. (Soucie 2004).

Deleted: with the prevalence of the antibodies among a group of controls of the same ages

Deleted: received

Deleted: recombinant

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: researchers

Deleted: the risk of transmission of B19 by recombinant therapy only is quite low.

Deleted: This contrasts sharply with the prevalence of antibodies among children treated with plasma-derived products only. Prevalence of antibodies is less for those that received both recombinant and plasma derived therapies. See Table 1.

The results of this study illustrate the potential for non-lipid-enveloped viruses to persist in blood and blood-based therapies. In 2001 processors of plasma-derived factor therapies instituted the use of nucleic acid amplification technology to screen plasma and adopted a voluntary industry standard for the management of PVB19. Nonetheless, Soucie and colleagues recommend the development of effective virus inactivation techniques for parvovirus and other non-enveloped viruses that might emerge. (Soucie 2004)

Deleted: Table 1: ¶

¶
While community acquired exposure and antibody prevalence to parvovirus occurs quite early,

Deleted: study authors

Deleted: effective against

Deleted:

Disease-Causing Prions

As with PVB19 and other non-lipid-enveloped viruses, current inactivation methods are ineffective against prions. Prions are soluble cellular protein particles (PrP^C) that lack nucleic acid and do not depend on genes or other factors for transmission of their traits. As discussed elsewhere in this supplement, transmissible spongiform encephalopathies (TSEs) such as the sporadic and variant forms of Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease are

Formatted: Superscript

characterized by the accumulation of an abnormal form of this protein particle (PrP^{sc}) in the brain.

Formatted: Superscript

Because prions lack nucleic acid, standard nucleic acid amplification technology cannot be used to detect vJCD and other TSEs. Also, the presence of abnormal prions does not trigger a measurable host immune response, making standard enzyme-linked diagnostic tests that measure antibodies, such as those used for AIDS, useless. New screening methods are in currently development.

During the disease's incubation period, estimated to be upwards of 40 years, infected individuals appear clinically healthy. Without a screening method for vCJD, donations by infected individuals will continue to pose a threat to patients using blood-derived therapies.

Opportunities for Discussions

Most patients become aware of the worldwide emergence of air- and blood-borne pathogens through articles and news broadcasts in the popular press. Without the benefit of broad-based medical knowledge for context, patients may become unduly alarmed about the risks these infectious agents pose. Hemophilia treaters have an opportunity to be proactive in addressing their patients' fears about these diseases and the particular health threats that blood-borne infectious agents might pose. To be effective, practitioners must themselves be informed about these new

infectious agents and the relative safety of the available therapeutic options.

The point of these discussions is to reduce patient fear and anxiety with regard to these new infectious diseases and to enhance patient trust in both hemophilia treaters and their therapeutic options. Fear is unavoidable if the potential threats of emerging pathogens are not met with an informed and appropriate response.

Discussing the Safety of Factor Replacement Therapies

Hemophilia treaters must be cognizant of and acknowledge the risk that emerging pathogens present their, especially vulnerable patients. The majority of hemophilia treaters are cautiously optimistic about the safety of current plasma-derived clotting factors and recombinant therapies. Their optimism is the result of more than 20 years of access to blood therapies free of HIV and more than 10 years of access to therapies free of HCV.

Pediatric hemophilia treaters, for example, today see few, if any, HIV- or HCV-infected patients. (Reference?) As a result, it is unlikely that these hemophilia treaters engage in regular conversations with their patients regarding emerging pathogens or the safety of the blood supply. Some clinicians believe that the responsibility for holding those discussions now resides with hemophilia consumer or advocacy groups. However, in order to offer their patients the best possible care, hemophilia treaters

- Deleted: ¶
¶
Perspectives for Practitioners
- Formatted: Font: Bold
- Deleted: Practitioners
- Deleted: to this
- Deleted: population that emerging pathogens present
- Deleted: Haemophilia treaters must be able to address their patients' fears and resistance to change with regard to choice of therapy.
- Deleted: Regarding
- Deleted: , the majority of haemophilia treaters are cautiously optimistic
- Deleted: ¶
¶
- Deleted: is
- Deleted: '
- Deleted: void
- Deleted: '
- Deleted: from
- Deleted: Haemophilia treaters
- Deleted:
- Deleted: ¶
¶
- Deleted: Due to the dearth of HIV- or HCV-infected patients, it is
- Deleted: medical professionals rarely
- Deleted: haemophilia
- Deleted: medical professionals
- Deleted: role
- Deleted: lie
- Deleted: haemophilia
- Deleted: .

must be able to address their patients' fears and resistance to change with regard to choice of therapy.

Deleted: (Reference?)

Current Treatment Guidelines

In recent years, patient advocacy groups and hemophilia treaters' organizations, have provided information, recommendations, and guidelines to help educate practitioners and others in the hemophilia community about the issue of the safety of the blood supply. For example, in November 2003, the Medical and Scientific Advisory Council (MASAC) of the US-based National Hemophilia Foundation (NHF) published Recommendation 151, advising manufacturers that "all efforts should be made to remove human albumin from recombinant factor VIII products." (NHF 2003)

Deleted: Both

Deleted: , as well

Deleted: as haemophilia

Deleted: ,

Deleted: issued

Deleted: and recommendations

Deleted: address

Similarly, in their 1999 update of the 1995 clinical practice guidelines for patients with hemophilia and von Willebrand disease, the Association of Hemophilia Care Directors of Canada stated that, "until methods for total viral removal or inactivation are available, alternative methods of cell culture and stabilization of recombinant clotting factor concentrates should be sought to avoid the need for plasma-derived human albumin that's currently in use." (AHCDC 1999)

Deleted: the UK Haemophilia Center Doctors' Organization Guidelines state that, "To reduce the chance of infection in a recombinant concentrate, consideration should be given to choosing one that is manufactured with the least addition of human or animal protein." (UKHCDO 2003) ¶

¶ Additionally, the National Haemophilia Foundation Medical and Scientific Advisory Council Recommendation 151 published in November of 2003 advises that, "All effort should be made to remove human albumin from recombinant factor VIII products." (NHF 2003) ¶

Deleted: Lastly,

Deleted: a

Deleted: s

Deleted: u

These guidelines, along with others published by groups such as the United Kingdom Haemophilia Centre Doctors' Organisation (UKHCDO 2003), indicate the proactive measures some organizations are taking to protecting their communities from blood-borne

infectious agents.

Three Countries, Three Approaches to Safety

Despite the fact that the recommendations of hemophilia groups in first-world nations are quite consistent, there is no uniform approach for protecting the blood supply; governments' approaches range from proactive to cautious. Three examples are immediately evident: the UK, the US, and Australia.

The most proactive of the three, the UK Department of Health, began a rolling phase-out of plasma-derived factor replacement therapies (UKHCDO 2004) and promoted the use of recombinant therapies that do not contain human or animal protein additives as the first-line choice for both children and adults with hemophilia A and B. These expanded measures were taken as a precaution against possible vCJD infection transmission through blood and blood products.

In the United States, the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) regulates the safety of plasma-derived and recombinant therapies. (IOM 1995) The US blood supply is perceived as safe and is considered preferable source for plasma for factor replacement. A number of therapies, both recombinant and plasma-derived, are available in the US; some of these recombinant therapies include plasma protein additives.

Australia, the most cautious of these three countries, only

provided access to recombinant factor VIII for all hemophilia patients in 2004 (Haemophilia Foundation Australia 2004). The result of these varying approaches to the safety of the blood supply is that many patients with hemophilia remain at risk for infection by blood-borne pathogens. These patients must rely on clotting factor replacement therapies, many of which still include the addition of human or animal plasma proteins that can carry infectious pathogens.

Developing a Safe Blood Factor Replacement Therapy

To completely eliminate the risk for blood-borne transmission of any new infectious pathogen, eg, vCJD, a recombinant factor therapy would likely need to include all of following features.

It should be:

- Grown in a cell line without any animal- or human-derived plasma proteins
- Processed with effective dedicated identification, exclusion, and inactivation steps for viruses and other pathogens,
- Rigorously tested for both lipid- and non-lipid-enveloped viruses
- Packaged and/or stabilized in the absence of any human- or animal-derived plasma proteins.

The goal is clear: reduce the risks for infection through clotting factors while maintaining the high levels of efficacy and low levels of immunogenicity evident in currently available

Deleted: .

Deleted: Pathogen Risks with

Deleted: Current

Deleted: Blood

Deleted: Factor

Deleted: Replacement

Deleted: Therapies

Deleted: Medical literature supports the fact that there has been no transmission of HIV, HBV, or HCV from any plasma derived or recombinant therapy in the United States since 1987. (NHF 2003) However, these are only the viruses for which current screens and tests are available.¶

Deleted: completely

Deleted: TSE

Deleted: (spell out?)

Deleted: viral and other pathogen

Deleted: available today

Deleted: -

Deleted: -

Deleted: (NHF 2003)

Deleted: Dr. Pipe, do we need a concluding sentence here about the feasibility/likelihood of a product/therapy achieving all the above bullet points?¶

therapies.

Additional Factor Replacement Considerations

The primary goal of any hemophilia practitioner is to enable one's patients to live as actively and productively as possible; selecting the appropriate factor replacement therapy for each patient can be very complex. Safety and efficacy are first and foremost considerations in choosing an antihemophilia therapy; inhibitor risk is an important but secondary concern.

Other considerations include patient convenience, and issues related to the consistency and reliability of supply for any particular therapy. The relative cost/benefit ratio can occasionally play a role, depending on what therapy is chosen. In the United States, policies regarding reimbursement for therapies can differ from state to state, which can cause confusion and consternation for patients and providers alike. Last, but not least, it is important to take patient preference and brand loyalty under consideration when choosing the appropriate factor therapy.

Conclusion

Underestimating what were seen as merely theoretical risks in the late 1970s and early 1980s ultimately resulted in the tragedy of HIV and HCV infection in patients with hemophilia worldwide. With the benefit of hindsight and the commitment of a proactive approach to emerging pathogens even in the face of scientific

Deleted: .

Deleted: Replacement

Deleted: Considerations

Deleted: and the Patient

Deleted: y

Deleted: antihemophilic

Deleted: prescription decision. I

Deleted: issues also come into play with prescription of available therapies. There are

Deleted: of

Deleted: for the

Deleted: patient

Deleted: product

Deleted: Reputation of t

Deleted: manufacturer can play a role as does

Deleted: product

Deleted: There are also

Deleted: concerns within the United States that

Deleted: even

Deleted: there are

Deleted: to take

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: Emerging Pathogens and the Haemophilia Patient Today¶
 Most patients are informed and aware of emerging worldwide pathogens through articles and news broadcasts in the popular press. As a result, haemophilia treaters have an opportunity to be proactive in addressing patients' fears surrounding these potential threats to their safety. To be effective, practitioners must themselves be informed about the issues regarding these new infectious agents and the relative safety of the range of therapeutic options currently available.

¶
 The point of these discussions is to reduce patient fear and anxiety with regards to these new infectious diseases and to enhance patient trust in both haemophilia treaters and the pharmacologic options from which they can choose. Fear is unavoidable ... [1]

Formatted: Font: Bold

uncertainty, patients with hemophilia should never have to endure such a crisis again.

The most fundamental lesson learned in the past 25 years is that government, patient advocacy groups, medical and scientific communities, and the manufacturers of clotting therapies all have an opportunity, and perhaps even an obligation, to approach potential threats from emerging pathogens in a proactive and productive manner.

Formatted: Tabs: Not at 1"

References

Abe H, Sugawara H, Hirayama J, et al: Removal of parvovirus B19 from hemoglobin solution by nanofiltration. Artif Cells Blood Substit Immobil Biotechnol 28:375-383, 2000

Association of Hemophilia Clinic Directors of Canada. Clinical Practice Guidelines: Hemophilia and von Willebrand's Disease (2. Management; Update 2). July 7, 1999. Available at <http://www.ahcdc.ca/Management.htm>. Accessed April 20, 2005.

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: CDC's Universal Data Collection Project: Blood Safety., February 2002. Available at: www.cdc.gov/ncbddd/hbd/blood_safety_facts.htm. Accessed March 16, 2005.

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: National Center for HIV, STD and TB Prevention: Frequently asked questions: how safe is the blood supply in the United States? Last updated December 15, 2003. Available at: <http://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pubs/faq/faq15.htm>. Accessed April 21, 2005.

Chandra S, Groener A, Feldman F: Effectiveness of alternative treatments for reducing potential viral contaminants from plasma-derived products. Thrombosis Research 105:391-400, 2002

Data on file. Deerfield, Illinois: Baxter Healthcare Corporation.

Deleted: The most fundamental lesson learned over the past 25 years is that government, patient advocacy groups, medical and scientific communities, and the manufacturers of anti-hemophiliac therapies all have an opportunity, and perhaps even an obligation, to approach potential threats from emerging pathogens in a proactive and productive manner. ¶ Underestimating what were seen as merely theoretical risks in the late 1970s and early 1980s ultimately resulted in the tragedy of HIV and HCV infection in the haemophilia community in many nations of the world. With hindsight, the contribution of evidence-based medicine, and the commitment of a proactive approach to emerging pathogens even in the face of scientific uncertainty, patients with haemophilia should never have to endure such a crisis again. ¶

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Farrugia A, for the WFH Task Force on TSEs: variant Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease and hemophilia - further guidance on assessing the risks of plasma-derived products for treating hemophilia. WFH TSE Task Force Risk Assessment. October 2004.

Fischer G, Hoots WK, Abrams C: Viral reduction techniques: types and purpose. Transfus Med Rev 15(2 suppl 1):27-39, 2001

Haemophilia Foundation Australia: Update on Access to Recombinant Factor VIII and Recombinant Factor IX for the Treatment of Haemophilia in Australia., December 2004. Available at: <http://www.haemophilia.org.au/news/id/11>. Accessed February 23, 2005.

Formatted: Font: Italic

Hoots WK: History of plasma-product safety. Transfus Med Rev 15(suppl 1):3-10, 2001

Institute of Medicine: HIV and the Blood Supply: An Analysis of Crisis Decisionmaking. Leveton LB, Sox HC Jr, Stoto MA, eds. Washington, DC: National Academy Press; 1995

Knight RSG, Will RG: Prion diseases. J Neurol Neurosurg Psychiatry 75(suppl 1):i36-i42, 2004

National Hemophilia Foundation. MASAC recommendations concerning the treatment of hemophilia and other bleeding disorders. MASAC

Document #151, November 2003. Available at:
www.hemophilia.org/research/masac/masac151.pdf. Accessed July 7,
2004.

Santagostino E, Mannucci PM, Gringeri A, et al: Transmission of
parvovirus B19 by coagulation factor concentrates exposed to 100
degrees C heat after lyophilization. Transfusion 37:517-522, 1997

Soucie JM, Siwak EB, Hooper WC, Evatt BL, Hollinger FB, and the
Universal Data Collection Project Working Group: Human parvovirus
B19 in young male patients with hemophilia A: associations with
treatment product exposure and joint range-of-motion limitation.
Transfusion 44:1179-1185, 2004

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

United Kingdom Haemophilia Centre Doctors' Organisation:
Guidelines on the selection and use of therapeutic products to
treat haemophilia and other hereditary bleeding disorders.
Haemophilia 9:1-23, 2003

United Kingdom Haemophilia Centre Doctors' Organisation on behalf
of The Department of Health Forward Planning and Monitoring
Group: Rollout of recombinant products to all adult haemophilia
patient in England: definitions of eligibility and calculation of
funding allocations. September 2004.

World Federation of Hemophilia: U.K. HCV compensation. WFH Safety
and Supply News 3(1):1, 2004[a]. Available at:

http://www.wfh.org/Content_Documents/Blood_Safety/SSnews_Feb2004_ENG.pdf. Accessed March 16, 2005.

World Federation of Hemophilia (WFH) TSE Task Force bulletin on vCJD risk in U.K.-sourced plasma products. September 2004 [b]. Available at: <http://www.hemophilia.ca/en/4.2.1.php>. Accessed February 23, 2005.

Table 1. Percent of Hemophilia A Patients With Parvovirus B19 Antibodies, By Age and Clotting Factor Exposure (N = 798)*

Age (years)	Clotting Therapy Type [†]			
	Recombinant Only	Plasma-Derived Only	Both	None
2	11.4	52.4	40.4	0
3	16.3	76.5	47.2	5.6
4	23.2	62.5	49.1	17.6
5	33.6	85.7	55.2	26.3
6	35.6	86.7	58.8	36.8
7	40.4	100	57.9	45.4

*Data are from a study in young males in the US, 1998-2001, by Soucie JM, et al.

[†]Data are reported as a percent.

... [21]

Formatted Table

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Superscript

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted Table

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Superscript/ Subscript

Deleted: .

Formatted: Tabs: Not at 1"